
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

COMMISSIONERS: Jon Leibowitz, Chairman 
J. Thomas Rosch 
Edith Ramirez 
Julie Brill 
Maureen K. Ohlhausen 

In the Matter of 

1210140 

Docket No. 9354 
Integrated Device Technology, Inc., a corporation, 

and 

PLX Technology, Inc., a corporation. 

COMPLAINT 

REDACTED PUBLIC 
VERSION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act and of the Clayton Act, 
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission (the 
"Commission"), having reason to believe that Respondent Integrated Device Technology, Inc. 
("IDT") and Respondent PLX Technology, Inc. ("PLX") having executed an agreement and plan 
of merger in violation of Section 5 ofthe Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 V.S.c. 
§ 45, and which if consummated would violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 
V.S.C. § 18, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would 
be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint pursuant to Section II(b) of the Clayton Act, 
15 U.S.C. § 21(b), and Section 5(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.c. § 45(b), 
stating its charges as follows: 

NATURE OF THE CASE 

1. IDT's proposed acquisition ofPLX threatens to create a near-monopoly in the PCIe 
switch market, which is likely to substantially lessen competition for the development 
and sale of PC Ie switches on a worldwide basis, leading to higher prices, lower quality, 
and less innovation. PCIe switches are integrated circuits that playa vital role in 
computer architecture. They are used in a variety of computer and embedded electronic 
applications to provide serial, high-speed, point-to-point connections between multiple 
input/output devices and a microprocessor. 
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2. IDT and PLX often compete head-to-head for PCle switch sales opportunities. Senior 
executives from both companies testified that IDT and PLX are the two primary 



as their only choices. When they issue Requests for Quotations, IDT and PLX are often 
the only companies from whom PCle switch users solicit bids. Eliminating this close 
competition between IDT and PLX likely will result in anticompetitive effects. Post­
acquisition, IDT will not have the same incentive to discount its prices to meet 
competition and it will not have the same incentive to innovate and offer 



backplane interconnect and as an expansion card interface for add-in boards. The PCle 
bus serves as the primary motherboard-level interconnect, connecting the host system­
processor with both integrated and add-on peripherals. The first generation PCle 
standard was established in 2002 to replac73 Tc 5.58lmf
0.0108 Tc 4Td
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COMPETITIVE EFFECTS 

A. Price Competition 

18. The Acquisition likely will substantially lessen competition in the market for PCIe 
switches by eliminating head-to-head competition between the two primary suppliers and 
creating a near-monopoly. Customers also view IDT and PLX as the only significant 
suppliers of PC Ie switches. . 

19. Given the near-monopoly position that a merged IDTIPLX will enjoy, it is likely that the 
Acquisition will eliminate actual, substantial, and direct competition between IDT and 
PLX, including competition on price. The parties' own testimony and documents provide 
strong support for this conclusion. For IDT's Matt J a leader of the 



vein, in. 2012, PLX approved lower prices forll on a 3rd generation PCle switch 
due to price competition from IDT. 

24. IDT and PLX are both well aware that customers leverage them against one another in 
order to obtain better and lower prices. While pursuing a particular PC Ie switch 
sales IDT executive concern that the ", .. " .... ",.1-".,,,", 

could be -wondered 
price." PLX Director of PC Ie switches responded, "I wouldn't be surprised if 
they were and agree to lower margins to take the socket away .... I would." 

25. Customers' reactions to the announcement ofthe Acquisition provide further evidence 
that the Acquisition will result in higher prices. For example, during a Mayl 2012 
meeting with PLX, one customer voiced the concern that IDT would likely raise PC Ie 
switch prices after the acquisition due to its dominant position. Likewise, in a May I 
20 . PLX's Western Regional Sales manager reported that a_ 

was worried that the Acquisition would lead to higher prices. 

B. Innovation Competition 

26. The Acquisition is likely to result in a loss of innovation by removing a key incentive to 
add new features to the parties' PCle switch families: competitive pressure from the other 
firm's product development. This loss in innovation competition represents a significant 
harm to customers in the PCle switch market, many of whom value innovation 
competition as much as price competition. 

27. As the two primary competitors (and innovators) in the PCIe switch market, IDT and 
PLX monitor and respond to each other's product developments. They regularly 
compare their existing and upcoming products to their rivals' on "roadmaps" that 
describe switch offerings. Over the past several years, successful innovation by one firm 
has often spurred the other firm to follow suit. One needs look no further than the 
development history of the various generations of PC Ie switches for evidence of this 
phenomenon. IDT was the first company to develop 2nd generation PC Ie switches; PLX 
followed soon thereafter. For 3rd generation PCle switches, the parties reversed roles: 
PLX brought its switches to market ahead ofIDT. 

28. The innovation rivalry drives IDT and PLX to add important new features to their PCIe 
switches thus driving innovation in the PCIe switch market. When PLX began offering 
non-transparent bridging on its 2nd generation PCle switches, IDT began losing sales to 
PLX due to the popularity ofthis feature. IDT responded by incorporating this feature 
into a new family of 2nd generation PC Ie switches. 

29. IDT's PCIe switch innovations have spurred PLX in a similar fashion. PLX responded to 
IDT's innovation by incorporating a feature known as spread spectrum clocking isolation 
into its 3rd generation PCle switches after losing several opportunities to IDT for 2nd 

generation PCIe switches. When IDT won a switch opportunity, PLX also responded to 
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losing by introducing the multicast feature to its 2nd generation PCle switches because it 
"didn't want to lose any more [2nd generation] opportunities." PLX responded again to 
an IDT innovation by incorporating an industrial temperature feature into certain 2nd 

generation PCle switches "in order to unseat IDT as the incumbent PCle switch supplier" 
at industrial temperature accounts. 

C. Competition in Customer Support 

30. The Acquisition also threatens to reduce the merged firm's incentives to provide 
customer support and maintain the quality of its switch offerings. For complex products 
such as PCle switches, high-quality support is critical for most customers. Throughout 
the design process, customers rely heavily on IDT and PLX for various forms of support, 
including engineering consultations, test cards, and debugging assistance. To meet their 
customers' needs, IDT and PLX must provide sample parts, maintain a well-trained 
engineering staff, and supply expensive testing equipment such as evaluation boards. 
This type of support requires a significant commitment of resources. In the absence of 
competitive pressure from a close rival, the resulting monopolist will have greater 
freedom to reduce the resources it allocates to customer support. 

31. PLX has used customer support as a competitive tactic to build customer loyalty and keep 
IDT from making inroads with those customers. In. 2011, a PLX sales 
representative working with III noted, "we have to find a way to support their 
development. This IS 
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B. Geographic Market 

35. For the purposes of this Complaint, the relevant geographic market for PCIe switches is 
worldwide. IDT and PLX have customers around the world. The larger customers 
themselves have worldwide operations with locations spread around the globe. Given the 
value of the product relative to its weight, shipping costs are negligible. Moreover, 
average prices for PCIe switches are comparable throughout the world. 

MARKET STRUCTURE 

36. The PCIe switch market has approximately $85-100 million in sales per year, with 
expectations that the market will grow to over $124 million by 2015. 

37. Currently, PLX and IDT are the number one and number two providers of PC Ie switches, 
respectively. IDT's internal business documents estimate that PLX has approximately 
69% of the PCIe switch market and IDT has approximately 31 %. In an email exchange 
discussing whether to continue competing with PLX or to acquire it, IDT's CEO 
described the difference as one of"2 strong players vs. one monopoly." An investment 
banking presentation prepared for IDT likewise described PLX as having "a duopoly 
position in the increasingly important PCIe space." Unsurprisingly, PLX's senior 
executives have expressed similar viewpoints: PLX's former CEO Ralph Schmidt 
observed that the Commission's investigation of the Acquisition "was not unexpected as 
we have two dominant competitors combining." 

38. PCIe switch competitors such as Pericom, Texas Instruments, ASMedia, NVIDIA, 
Emulex, and MicroniVirtensysrepresent a marginal competitive fringe at best. Pericom 
currently offers only a handful of smaller, i.e., those with eight or fewer lanes, 1 st and 2nd 

generation PCIe switches. Texas Instruments offers only one small 1 st generation PCIe 
switch. NVIDIA only sells a limited number oflegacy 2nd generation PCIe 



points. Here, the Acquisition increases concentration in the relevant market for PCle by 
2,859 points to a HHI level of7,482, creating a substantially more concentrated market. 
These post-merger PCIe switch market concentration levels, as well as the increase in 
concentration produced by the Acquisition, greatly exceed where a transaction is 
presumed to produce anticompetitive effects. Under the Merger Guidelines and case law, 
these concentration levels establish a presumption that the Acquisition will lead to 
anticompetitive harm. The HHI figures are summarized in the following table. 

PCIe Switch Market Concentration 

PCIe Switch 
Competitor 

Pre-Acquisition Market Share Post-Acquisition Market Share 

PLX 63.40% 

IDT 22.55% 85.95% 

Pericom 

NVIDIA 

Emulex 

Texas Instruments 

Pre-Acquisition IllII = 4623 

Post-Acquisition IllII = 7482 

Change in IllII = 2,859 

41. These market concentration figures likely understate the competitive harm resulting from 
the Acquisition. As described, supra �~� 38, Texas Instruments and Pericom do not 
3rd generation PCle switches or those with large lane counts and 

a 2nd 
. PCle switch for its own 

customers can 
switches. 

ENTRY BARRIERS 

42. Neither entry by new firms nor expansion by the fringe competitors will occur in a 
timely, likely, or sufficient manner to avert the Acquisition's anticompetitive effects. 

43. New entry or meaningful expansion into the relevant market is difficult and expensive, 
and thus unlikely, due to the high level of expertise that is required to develop PCle 
switches that meet customers' requirements. PLX recognizes that the complexity of PC Ie 
switches serves as an entry barrier to the relevant market, describing a PCIe switch as "a 
sophisticated product not many people can do." 
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44. The high cost of entry by new firms or expansion by the fringe competitors serves as 
another barrier to entry or expansion into the relevant product market. Entry with even a 
single PCIe switch would cost several million dollars. These costs constitute a significant 
barrier to entry in the context of a market with current sales of $1 00 million dollars or 
less. Notably, PLX recognizes that the high cost of developing a PCIe switch is a barrier 

PLX's interim CEO detailed this barrier in an email to one of his 

45. The high cost of entry is magnified because an entrant would likely need to develop a 
broad product portfolio of PC Ie switches to compete effectively with IDT and PLX. The 
breadth ofIDT and PLX's product portfolios allow them to compete for, and capture, a 
much larger portion of the total available PCIe switch market than fringe competitors or 
potential entrants. It also enhances their reputation among customers. Only IDT and 
PLX have the broad portfolios to compete for most PCIe switch opportunities. The 
fringe firms in the market lack broad product portfolios and have not grown significantly 
in the last several years. 

46. In light of these advantages, it is not surprising that PLX's interim CEO, Dave Raun, 
detailed in a 2009 email that "one of the barriers to entry is the requirement for a broad 
product line." Mr. Raun further highlighted that: potential entrants to the relevant market 
need to develop all three generations of PC Ie switches, all of which according to Mr. 
Raun "requires a big investment." IDT and PLX have already made significant 
investments into developing these portfolios. Any potential entrant would thus need to 
develop a full family of PC Ie switches across multiple generations in order to compete 
effectively against IDT and PLX. The risks of making this investment are substantial, as 
it can take a significant amount of time before determining whether a new product will 
achieve success, and the investment associated with any failed entry attempts would 
largely be unrecoverable. 

47. Beyond the challenges of expertise and money, even if a new entrant were confident that 
it could overcome IDT and PLX's significant incumbency advantages, developing a PCIe 
switch is time consuming. Since new PCIe switches must be backwards compatible with 
previous generations, firms that wish to develop the newest-generation PCIe switches 
must also ensure those switches meet all of the prior generations' specifications. 
Completing the necessary design and testing to ensure this compatibility prolongs the 
development process. As a result, even the best-positioned putative entrants would need 
at least two years to develop market-reid PCIe switches. In fact, even with its proven 
expertise, it has taken IDT longer than �y�e�~�~�.�l�~�.�~�~�=�~�J�l�r�s�t� 3

rd 
generation PCIe 

switch family of products, at a cost of at 1east_. 

EFFICIENCIES 

48. Any pro competitive efficiencies from the Acquisition will not outweigh its likely 
anticompetitive effects. The merger of the two leading competitors in the PCIe switch 
market threatens consumers with higher prices, reduced innovation, and inferior customer 
service. Under the Merger Guidelines, "the greater the potential adverse competitive 
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effect of a merger, the greater must be the cognizable efficiencies, 



NOTICE 

Notice is hereby 



NOTICE OF CONTEMPLATED RELIEF 

Should the Commission conclude from the record developed in any adjudicative proceedings 
in this matter that the Acquisition challenged in this proceeding violates Section 7 of the Clayton 
Act, as amended, or Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, the Commission may order such 
relief against Respondents as is supported by the record and is necessary and appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

1. If the Acquisition is consummated, divestiture 


